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Dear Mr Isa  

 

Thank you for your request for advice made by email on 14 November 2011. We have assigned this case the 

reference number D.514. Please refer to this number in any future correspondence with the AIRE Centre 

regarding this case. I apologise for the delay in responding to your request.  

 

FACTS  
 

The facts of your request for advice, as I understand them, are as follows. 

 

You are a Danish national who lived in Denmark until 22 December 2011, at which time you relocated to 

Sweden. You have never lived in any other EU Member State. Your wife, Malak Bdeir Isa, is a Palestinian 

national. Your child, Siraj Isa, born 2 January 2011, is also a Danish national. 

 

Malak and Siraj are financially dependent entirely on your income. 

 

Malak, accompanied by Siraj, was expelled from Denmark to the West Bank, Palestine, on 4 October 2011 

with a two-year prohibition on re-entry following the refusal of her application for a residence permit for 

family reunification on 24 June 2011. The Ministry of Integration (replaced by Ministry of Justice on 3 

October 2011) considered that you failed to meet its ‘attachment requirement’ because the combined 

attachment of you and Malak to Denmark was not significantly greater than your combined attachment to 

any other country. On 20 September 2011, the Ministry of Integration rejected your request of 6 July 2011 to 

reopen the case and considered that, contrary to your view, you could not rely upon Case C-34/09 Zambrano. 

 

The official documents pertaining to your case are in Danish only. 

 

You seek advice on: 

 whether the Ministry of Integration erred in its interpretation of Zambrano; and  

 whether the AIRE Centre can assist in a legal action against the now Ministry of Justice.  

 

APPLICABLE LAW 

 

European Convention on Human Rights 

Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union 

EU Directive 2004/38 

Case C-370/90 Surinder Singh 

Udvalget for Udlændinge- og Integrationspolitik 2011-12
L 104 Bilag 7
Offentligt
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Case C-34/09 Zambrano  

Case C-256/11 Dereci 

 

ADVICE  
 

Whether the Ministry of Integration erred in its interpretation of Zambrano 

 

Zambrano: Right to reside 

 

In Case C-34/09 Zambrano, the Court of Justice of the European Union (‘CJEU’) established that a third-

country national (i.e. non EU citizen), upon whom an EU citizen child is dependent, has a right to reside in 

the EU Member State of that child’s nationality if it is necessary to ensure that the child is not deprived of 

the genuine enjoyment of the substance of the rights conferred by virtue of his/her status as an EU citizen 

(paragraph 42). This right derives from Article 20 Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union. This is 

not a ‘free movement’ right. It is about the right of EU citizen children to live in the EU, notably in their 

country of underlying nationality (in your child’s case, Denmark). 

 

The CJEU in Case C-256/11 Dereci clarified and significantly qualified the meaning of Zambrano: ‘the 

criterion relating to the denial of the genuine enjoyment of the substance of the rights conferred by virtue of 

European Union citizen status refers to situations in which the Union citizen has, in fact, to leave not only 

the territory of the Member State of which he is a national but also the territory of the Union as a whole’ 

(paragraph 66). 

 

Siraj, a Danish citizen, has now left the territory of the EU, so this clearly applies to him. The question is 

whether now it is necessary to grant your wife, Malak, a right to reside in Denmark in order to ensure that 

Siraj can return to the EU. 

 

Zambrano and Dereci: Did Siraj have to leave the territory of Denmark and the EU? 

 

The Ministry of Integration’s position would probably be that Siraj did not have to leave and, consequently, 

your case fell outside the scope of Zambrano and Dereci. Siraj was not officially expelled from Denmark 

and you, as a parent upon whom Siraj was or could become dependent, were available as an alternative carer.  

 

We think there is a strong answer to this argument. You could argue that, whilst Siraj was not officially 

expelled from Denmark, the expulsion of Malak amounted to Siraj’s constructive expulsion from EU 

territory (Zambrano, paragraph 84) and, in turn, he was deprived of the genuine enjoyment of the substance 

of the rights conferred by virtue of EU citizenship. It was constructive expulsion because Siraj had to leave 

Denmark by virtue of his dependency upon Malak. This dependency, which is daily, emotional and 

psychological, arises because of the mother and child bond, which was, at the time of Malak’s final removal 

decision, particularly strong given that Siraj was only eight months old. Siraj’s dependency upon Malak 

could be viewed as having primacy over his dependency upon you, weakening the argument that you could 

simply look after him. The strength of this dependency would also counter any suggestion of keeping the 

family together on the basis of mere desirability. EU law in this area must be interpreted in line with the 

European Convention on Human Rights, Article 8 of which protects the right to respect for family life. What 

the Danish authorities have essentially done is give your son a choice between enjoying his EU citizenship 

rights by living in Europe or enjoying family rights with his mother. Such a choice is not acceptable. 

 

Alternative solution 

 

There is now another possibility however. You are now living in Sweden. If you are exercising your EU 

free-movement rights there by working, being self-employed, studying or living as a self-sufficient person, 

you do not have to rely on Zambrano to bring your son and wife back to Europe. Your wife will have a right 

directly under EU Directive 2004/38 to come and live in Sweden as, of course, will your son. Your wife can 
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obtain an entry visa free of charge from the Swedish authorities and, when she comes to Sweden, she can get 

a residence card, also free of charge. 

 

If you, your wife and son live in Sweden for some time while you exercise your residence rights there and 

you then later decide to move to Denmark, your wife will also be able to join you. This is because EU 

citizens living and exercising residence rights in other EU Member States with their non-EU family members 

are allowed to return to their country of origin (in this case Denmark) with those family members. This was 

established by the CJEU in Case C-370/90 Surinder Singh (paragraphs 21, 25). 

 

Next Steps 
 

The AIRE Centre is a small charity with limited resources, capable only of taking on a very select number of 

cases within our expertise. Our scope of expertise does not extend to Danish legal proceedings. Regretfully, 

therefore, we are unable to assist you in a legal action against the Ministry of Justice. You may wish to 

consult a lawyer in Denmark in this regard and show him/her this advice.  

 

In any event, however, there may be a more practical solution. If you are living and exercising your 

residence rights in Sweden, your wife can come and join you there now with your son. She should be able to 

get an entry visa and a residence card for free. All she has to do is prove you are married and that you are 

exercising residence rights in Sweden. If you later decide to move as a family to Denmark, you will be able 

to do so as well. You should contact the Swedish authorities to ask how to apply for the necessary entry and 

residence documents. 

 

I hope this advice is helpful. Please do not hesitate to contact me (caseworker4@airecentre.org) if I can 

provide any further information.  

 

Yours sincerely  

 

Omkar Sidhu 

Caseworker 
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